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PROCEEDINGS

CHATIRMAN HANNAH: This hearing is now in session,
and I should like to introduce into the record some corres- .
pondence.

The first is a letter seﬁt to the Commission dated
August 19, 1960, signed by Frank Voelker, Jr., State Sovereign-
ty Commission. Communication addressed "United States Civil
Rights Commission, Washington 25, D.C. Attentlon Mr. Tiffany,
Director."

"Gentlemen: We would appreciate it very much if
you would promptly advise the date, time and place of your
next proposed Louisiana hearing. We would appreciate being
Informed as to the nature of this hearing, the mammer in
which 1t is to be conducted, whether or not it will be open
to the public, and to what extent public officlals and
representatives of the State of Loulsilana will be pevmitted
to participate.

"Your prompt reply will be very much appreciated,
Yours very truly, State Sovereignty Commission," signed Frank
Voelker, Jr., Chairman.

The reply ls dated August 24, to the Honorable
Frank Voelker, Jr., Chalrman, State Sovereignty Commission,
State Capltol Bullding, Baton Rouge, Loulsilana.

"Dear Chairman Voelker: In answer to your inquiry

of August 19, 1960, we advise you that the next hearing
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scheduled by this Commission is to be held in New Orleans
on September 27 and 28, We will advise you about precise
details when arrangements have been cqmpletedq

"The nature of these hearings will be to hear facts
as to whether or not a citizen or citizens of the United States
are being denied their right to vote and have that vote counted
because of race, color, religion or national origin, -It will
be conducted in the manner provided by the Rules prevlously
adopted by this Commisslon and recently approved by the de~
cision of the Unlted States Supreme Court in Hannah versus
Iarche. I regret that I do not have additional coples of this
opinlon for distribution,; but coples may be obtained from the
Clerk of the Supreme Court, Washington 25, D,C,

"The hearings will be open to the public. Public
officials and representatives of the State of Louilsiana will
be permitted to appear and offer testimony relevant and mate-
rial to the lssues and in accordance with the Rules of Pro-
cedure of this Commission, a copy being enclosed for your
information,"”

On August 24, a letter was sent %o the Honorable
dJack P, ¥, Gremillion, the Attorney General, State of
Louisiana, Baton Rouge, Louldiana.

"Dear General Gremillion: This is to glve you
formal notice of the public hearings which the Commlssion on

Civil Rights has scheduled for September 27 and 28, 1960, in
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New Orleans. As soon as arrangements have been completed we
will send you information as to the precise bullding in that
area.

"I am pleased to enclose a copy of the Rules of
Procedure which the Commission ﬁill follow in the conduct of
these hearings. The nature of the hearings will be to hear
facts as to whether or not a citizen or citizens of the United
States are belng deniled their right to vote and have that
vote counted because of race, color, religion or rnational
origin." Signed for the Commission by Gordon M. Tiffany,
Staff Director,

The next 1s a telegram dated September 13 from
Baton Rouge, addressed to the Honorable Gordon M. Tiffany,
Director of Civil Rights Commission, 726 Jackson Place,
Waéhington, D.C. |

"Reference proposed Civil Rights hearing New
Orleans, September 27 and 28, We note that no registrars of
voters have at this late date been subpenaed, Not knowing
the nature of your hearing, would appreclate being advised
whether or not any reglstrars of voters will be subpenaed.,
If so, who and whether or not records are to be subpenaed. Sug-
gest postponement of your hearing because of extreme likelihood
of interfering with preparation of voter lists and so forth.
All as required by Louisiana law for general speclal refer-

endum during month of October." Signed Jack P, F. Gremillion,
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Attorney General of Louislana.

On the same date, September 13, 1960, a telegram
from Mr, Tiffany %o the Honorable Jack P, F. Gremillion,
Attorney General, State Capitol, Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

"Re ur tel today... List of witnesses for September 27
and 28 hearings has not been flnally determined. You will be
notified simultaneously of any subpenas served upon registrars,"
and signed by Gordon M, Tiffany, Staff Director, Commission on
Civil Rights.

Prior to this, and 1t should have beer. introduegd
earlier, before the last exchange of telegrams, is a letter
August 29, 1960 to Mr, Gremillilon.

"Dear General Gremillion: With further reference
to the notice of hearings scheduled for New Orleans on Sep-~
tember 27 and 28, this is to inform you that the hearings will
be held in Room 222, Camp Street, Federal Post Office Building,
New Orleans, commencing at 9:30 a.m., September 27."

Signed Gordon M. Tiffany.

On the same date, the :same letter to Chairman
Voelker of the State Sovereignty Commission.

"With further reference to the notice of the hearings
scheduled for New Orleans September 27-28, thils is to inform |
you the hearings will be held in Room 222 of the Federal
Post Office Bullding on Camp Street, New Orleans, commencing

at 9:30 a.m, September 27." Signed Gordon M, Tiffany.
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This morning on arrival here there was delivered
t0 me as chairman of this Commission six telegrams which were
received about twenty minutes ago, and I shall for the pur-
pose of the record read them lnto The record.

The first one is: "Chalrman John A. Hannah" --

This is from Homer, Loulsilana,

ts "Givil Rights Commission, 222 Federal Court
Bullding, New Orleans.

"Understand from news media that a witness before
your commlttee testified that some time ago that I threatened
hig 1life if he attempted to reglster to vote. .As sheriff of
Claiborne Parish during that period I deny this false state-
ment. To my knowledge no one has been threatened because of
their wanting to register to vote. Am sending a copy of this-
telegram to the Attorney General Jack P. F, Gremillion,
Roosevelt Hotel, New Orleans." Signed John M. Brown.

The next one is from Natchltoches, Loulsiana, .«

"John A. Hannah, Chairman, Civil Rights Commission,
Room 222, Federal Courts Bullding, New Orleans.

"Emphatically deny all charges of any discrimination
against Negroes on my part in Natchitoches and Red River
Parishes alleged and made over radio, television and in press.
If you want to find out the true facts, suggest you hear us
Just as you have others." Signed Lester Hughes, District

Attorney, Natchitoches and Red River Parish.
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Next one: "St. Joseph, Louisiana., Honorable John A.
Hannah, Chairman, Civil Rights Commission, Room 222, Federal
Court Bullding, New Orleans.

"Newspaper reports indicgte witnesses from East
Carroll and Madison Parlshes attending hearing have been denied
right to vote, Be advised that these complalnts were adjudi-.
cated in Federal Court of Louisiaﬁa, Western District, and
thelr cases dismissed. Attorne& Sharp of Monroe represented
the Madison Parish petitioners. All other allegations made in
the testimony of these parties untrue.

"We demand you have further hearings before the
same news media which you have assembled and afford us the
opportunity to refute these untrue allegations. This is the
only way we can lintelligently determine the falr and impartial
facts.

"It is my understanding your Commilssion is interested
in determining whether or not Negroes are actually denled the
righ%t of suffrage. If I am correct in this assumption,
congressional mandate requires that you report the true facts
to the Presldent of the United States, and thils can only be
done by calling the requested hearing.

"Am releasing this telegram to press and Honorable
dJack T, F., Gremillion, Attorney General of Loulsiana, in
New Orileans," Signed Thompson L. Clark,District Attorney, Sixth

Judiclal District, Madison, East Carroll, and Tensas Parishes.
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The next one is Shreveport, Louisiana: "John A.
Hannah, Chairman, Commission on Clvil Rights, Room 222, Post
Office Buillding, New Orleans.

"Newspaper accounts indicate a total of seven
Negroes from Bossier and Webster ?arishes gave false Gesti-~
mony under oath today regarding alleged deprivation of vobting
or other rights in my district. I am prepared to prove that
none of the seven possesses legal qualifications for voting
and request on behalf of our reglstrars of voters opportunity
to rebut these false accusations before same mass news medla
afforded by you to these perjurers." Signed Louis H, Padgett,
District Attorney, 26th Jqdicial District of Loulsiana.

Next from Shreveport: "John A, Hannah, Chairman,
Civil Rights Commission, Room 222, United States Post Offlce,
New Orleans.

"This is to officially infcrm you that none in the
Caddo Parish District Attorney’s office has ever denied any-
one of his right to vote or register to vote nor ever advised
or counseled any reglstrar of voters to diseriminate in any
way agalnst anyone attempting to register, and furthermore,
none has ever made any complaint to this District Attorney's
office that he has been discriminated agalnst by any registrar
or other public official in.offering to reglster to vote.
All of which can be verified at any tlme, in a full, open

public hearing, with full right of cross examination.” Signed
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John A. Richardson, District Attorney, First Judicial District
of Louilslana.

The last one, from Shreveport, Louisiana: "Civil
Rights Commission, Room 222, Federal Court Building, New
Orleaqgo

"Am advised by news media that in the Civil Rights
hearing now being held certain accusations have been made
against me by one Reverend Harry Blake, His remarks are abso-
lutely false. He has been arrested and convicted. Certified
coples of court convictions are available to support this,
Further, I state emphatically and with absolutely no reserva-
tion that I have never entertained the thought of framing or
harrassing anyone, regardless of race, color or creed, in
the years I have been in law enforcement work. I regret
that the Commission has not given me an opportunity to defend
myself against these accusations. I stand ready at any time
to furnish information to the proper authorlties or to the
Commisslon that will be most revealing to the background and
activitles of the so-called "Reverend Harry Blake,'" Signed
Harvey D, Teasley, Chlef of Polilce,

We offer all of this correspondence for the record.
in view of these telegrams, the Commission has decided to
| proceed with the hearing as originally planned through this
morning until 1t 1s completed.

We do not intend to vary from our rules and have
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thils become a forum for political debate.

However, 1f there are any registrars in any of the
parishes from which we have heard witnesses that want to be
heard, this Commission will remalin in session this afternoon
to hear such registrars, not the people that have sent the
telegrams, but, I maké perfectly clear, the registrars who
are accused of discriminat%tion will be given an opportunity if
they wish to appear this afternoon, and the Commission will
remain In session for that purpose.

We would appreciate it if the representatives of
the Attorney Géneral could advise us by noon or 12:30 whether
or not he knows of any of the‘registrars of these parishes
that would like to be heard,

MR, DALTON: We will do so, Mr. Chailrman, as quick
as possible. These registrars, of course, are from the ex-
treme northern part of the state. It may be impossible %o
get any of them here, but we will try to get the state police
to fly some of them down.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: If you could notify us by the
time we adjourn this noon, so we would know what to expect.

MR. DALTON: As qulickly as I can, sir.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Dean Storey, will you take over
and resume the hearing?

(Vice Chairman Storey assumed the chair at

this point.)
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Mr. Bernhard, I believe the
next item calls for some documentary evidence,
MR. BERNHARD: That 1s correct, Mr. Vice Chairman,
For the record, and prior to getting into tﬁe r;gu-
lar order of the documentaries, I would like to make one
statement for the record, that in response o a question from
Commissioner Hesburgh yesterday regarding the present level
of registration, the 1960 level, I indicated that the per cent
of white registration was 82. That actually is the per cent
of literacy of the Negro age 21 and over. The actual per cent
is 74 per cent, and the per cent of total vobting population;
that is, out of 100 per cent of those who were registered in
the state, 86 per cent are white,
We are ready to proceed. The first document I
would like to have ldentified and marked as Exhlbilt E is a
state court case entitled Thomas v. McElveen. It was decided
on April 6, 1959 in the 22nd Judiclal Court of Ouachita Parish,
Civil Docket Number 27,751, It deals with the discretion of
the registrars. It will be discussed at a later point, but I
would just like it identified now.
(The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number E for
identification. )
MR, BERNHARD: May it please the Commission, in %the

month of January 1959 an agreement was made between the
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Honorable Gordon M. Tiffany, Staff Director of the Unilted
States Commission on Civil Rights, and Attorney General
Gremillion of Loulslana that we would advise Attorney General
Gremillion respecting registrars that we might wish to inter-
view in ILouisiana. As a result, Colonel Rogsenfeld met with
Attorney General Gremillion February 27, 1959, The Attorney
General advised Colonel Rosenfeld that he would personally
Join him in certain interrogations, gnd the parishes which
were determined were those of Webster and Caddo, both of which
were involved in the oral presentations yesterday, even though
at that time there were additional parishes involved,

As a result of this conference, arrangements were
made to interview registrars of Caddo and Webster Parish on
March 12, 1959. Mr. U. Charles Mitchell, registrar of voters
for Caddo Parish, Loulsiana, was interviewed by Colonel Rosen-
feld in Caddo Parish Court House in Shreveport, Loulsiana in
the morning. There were a number of individuals and publlc
officials, private individuals and publiec officials, present,
some of whom, in addition..to Colonel Rosenfelt and Mr. Mitchell,
were the Agtorney General, Jack Gremlillion, who was acting as
counsel for Mr, Mitchell, Mr, Willlam Shaw, attorney for the
Joint Legislature Committee of the State of Louisiana, Mr.
Ford Stinson, member of the Joint Legislative Committee, and
representatives of the District Aftorney‘s office of Caddo

Parish. This Interview was tape recorded and a copy duly
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certified by V. E. Creiglaw, deputy clerk, First Judicial
District Court of the State of Louisiana and notary of Loulsi-
ana,

This transcript was then forwarded to the Commission.

In the afternoon of the same day -- that is, March 12,
1959 -- Colonel Rogenfeld interviewed Mrs, Winnice P, Clement,
registrar of voters for Webster Parish, Louisiana, at the
Webster Parish Court House, Minden, Louislana. Those present
in addition %o Colonel Rosenfeld and Mrs. Clement were Attorney
General Gremillion, who acted as counsel for Mrs. Clemend,

Mr., John P. Campbell, Mrs. Clement’s personal attorney,
Senator William Rainach of Homer, Loulsiana, and chairman at
that time of the Joint Legislative Committee, Mr, William
Shaw was actlng as attorney for the Legislative Commititee,
and Representative John Garrett, a member of the Legislatilve
Conmittee.

In addition, there were certaln representatives of
the District Attorney's office of Webster Parish.

As the Commission may have noted yesterday as a
result of the oral testimony, there are certain distinet
varlations in the methods employed by registrars in the dif-
ferent parishes, particularly affecting the application of
the so-called literacy test.

The followlng excerpts taken from these two inter-

views compare the operations of the reglistrars in Webster and
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Caddo Parishes,

These excerpts, I submit, will reflect not only
differences in basic approach, but establish a wide dis-
eretion which is afforded to each registrar in administering
the Loulsiana voting laws.

The first excerpt deals with the application of
the literacy test.

At this point I would like %o have identifiled and
marked as Exhibit F the inberview of Mr., U. Charles Mitchell,
registrar of voters for Caddo Parish by Colonel A. H. Rosen—
feld, Jr.

(The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number F-1 for
identification., )

MR. BERNHARD: The first excerpt dealing with
literacy tests goes as follows:

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Now, what efforts do you make
to comply with the literacy requirement?

"Mr. Mitchell: Just as provided by law,

"Colonel Rosenfeld; Now, in that respect do you
have them read and interpret sections of the Louislana or the
United States Constitution?

"Mr, Mitchell: I have not applied that, Colonel.

I have not found that it was actually necessary up to this
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polint,

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Then when these people do come
in, what is?

"Mr, Gremillion: May I say something?

"Colonel Rosenfeld; Surely,

"Mr, Gremillion: Mr. Mitchell, as I understand
the matter -- I talked to you about this -~ I understand that
you have never applied the Constitution test since you have
been reglstrar to anyone.

“Mr, Mitchells No, sir.

"Mr, Gremillion: Regardless of race, creed or
coloe?

"Mr, Mitchell: Not a single person,"

The next exhibit I would like %o have identified
as Exhibit F-2 ~- the prior one should be known as Exhibit
F-1 -- was the interview with Mrs. Winnlce P. Clement,
reglistrar of voters for Webster Parish, by Colonel A, H,
Rosenfeld, Jr., and this will compare the application of the
literacy test.

(The document referred %o was
marked Exhiblt Number F-2 for
identification.)

MR, BERNHARD: "Colonel Rosenfeld: Then after the
applicant £ills out this form, do you then ask him or her to

read and interpret a section of the Loulsiana or the United
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States Constitution?

"WMrs, Clement: I didn't ask everyone. If I know
them personally and know they have been reglstering over the
years, whlte or colored, I don't ask everyone.

"colonel Rosenfeld: Now, is there a requirement

in your law that in so far as you are concerned that every

person who applies for registration should be able to read and

interpret the Constitution?

"Mrs., Clements Yes,

"Colonel Rosenfeld: But you do not do that in
every case, |

"Mrs, Clement: Well, not in every case, because
there is teachers and lawyers and people that I know can do
it and that have been registering for‘&ears."

Further down in this same interview:

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Now, do you give them the
fitness test or the literacy test before they fill out the
form?

"Mrs., Clement: Well, I used to let them fill out
the card first, but now I ask them to interpret the Consti-
tution first."”

The next group of excerpts comparling the different
procedures and practices of the registrars deals with the
custody of registration records. The first is the interview

in Caddo Parilsh.
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"Golonel Rosenfeld: Have you maintained the cards
of those persons who were turned down?

"Mr. Mitchell: I have maintained the cards of the
persons who have attempted. Now, in some insfances when I
tell the person to read his card, which I always -- I say,

¥You read your questions carefully, they muét be filled
out correctly,’®and in a lot of instances the person will
look at the card and push it back and say, 'I donft care to
go Tthrough with that.!

"Colonel Rosenfeld: But you have maintained your
file of those who have filled out cards and have been turned
down,

"Yes, sir,"

The next excerpt 1s the practice regarding custody
of cards in Webster Parish,

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Now, do you keep any of the
cards that have been fllled out of people who have beep turned
down?

"Mra., Clement: Well, a few. I keep them. I mean,
since I make them interpret the Constltution first, I don't
have the card. But before I did.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Do you still have those records?

"Mrs, Clement: No, I turned them over %o my at-
torney. The law does not require the registrar to keep it,

but just in case I am ever called upon to produce them, I
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will have some of them.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Well, can you tell me why you
turned them over to your attorne& instead of destroying them?

"Mrs, Clement: Well, I just kept a few in case.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Does your attorney now have
them in his possession?

- "Mrs., Clements Yes.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: So far as you know?

"Mrs. Clement: Yes.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Is there any objection to my
seeing those cards?

"Mr. Campbell” --

Mr, Campbell, let me interject here, is personal
counsel to Mrs. Clement in Webster Parish,.

"Mr, Campbell: Let me say personally I have no
objection to you seeing them, but I think they are a record
there that might be avallable and mizht be needed in a law
sult in case any registrant -- 1f she does not know the reason
why they were deferred to me, I do, It was with the thought
that some one of %hose individuals mlight at some time claim
that he had been improperly denied the right of registration.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Well, then --

"Mr, Campbell: And we would have that as evidence
in the case,

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Now, as Mrs, Clement's attorney,
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can you tell me your legal right to keep those cards in your
possession?

"Mr, Campbell: As her attorney I think that is
evident I have the right to keep them. As I sald, they are -
not a part of the records of her of'fice that she is obliged to
keep, but they are evidence that might be needed at some
future time, and for the matter of preserving them for the
record, I am keeping them,"

This continues later on.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Well, I just want to get one
other thing clear. Under your laws, I believe, the reglstrar
is the custodlan of the records, Is that right?

"Mr. Gremillion: Not these records.

"Mr, Campbell: That is not an official record,

"Mrs, Clement: That is not% a record.

"Mr. Gremillion: What you are talking about is a
record that she is not required to keep under Louisiana law,
She has kept those and turned them over to her attorney purely
in the event that someone may file a sult, a damage suilt,
against her, because we have had several of those in the
state in the past, As far as I am personally concerned,
this is a matter that exists between client and lawyer, and
in my opinion 1s a privileged communication. It is up %o
Mr, Campbell whether he wishes you to see them or not, They

are not public records of the State of Loulsiana, and they
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are not public records of the registrar's office."
A% this point I would ask that the Commission
identify an opinion of the Attorney General dated December 5,
1958 as Exhibit F-3.
(The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number F-3 for
identification.)
MR, BERNHARD: This is an opinion written to Mr,
John T. Campbell, who is counsel for the registrar in Webster
Parish., In this opinion, and I quote, it says: "R.S. 1891
of the revised statutes of the Stéte of Lioulsiana of 1950 in
part deslignates records of the registrars which are permanent
records, and doubtless the records which are sought %o be
photographed are among those listed in Section 91. Section 92
of the above Title 18 in part provides that all of the records
referred to 1n Section 91 are public records and shall at all
times during office hours be open to Inspection by any quali-
fied voter."
I now ask that the State of Loulsiana registration
of voters laiw be ldentified as Exhiblt F-4,

. (The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number F-4 for
identification,)

MR, BERNHARD: In the communication I just read

there was a reference to Section 91, and I would like to read



297
that to you.

"9l, Permanent records, card index of voters.
Reglstrars shall keep the following in their offices as
permanent recordss 1. Original applications for registration.”

The next comparison of the practices in the two
parishes relates to the identification and use of the so-called
vouchers. The first interview from which I shall read excerpts
is in Caddo Parish.

"Golonel Rosenfeld: Mr. Mitchell, there is one more
question I think I can ask you. It may be in the record., If
not, I would like to make sure it is. In asking the applicants
the questions which you do, to show thelr good faith and
good citizenship, do you have a set form of question you ask?

"Mr, Mitchell: No, sir.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: You ask the same questions?

"Mr. Mitchell: The same questilons,

"Colonel Rosenfeld: Of both white and colored?

"Mr. Mitchell: To each and every person.

"Golonel Rosenfeld: And they are such questions which
you in your mind feel should be necessary to permit a person
to be a good cltizen and be permitted to vote.

"Mr, Mitchell: They are questions which I think
are the fairest I could ask to any person.

"Colonel Rosenfeld: I wonder if you could tell me

some of those questions,



298

"Mr. Mitchell: Well, when a person comes in, he
says he wants to register to vote. I ask him, *How long
have you lived in Louisiana?®’ and he tells me; maybe he will
say ten years. Then I will say, ‘How long have you llved in
Caddo Parish?! Maybe he will say five years. Then I say,
'What do you have on your person? What identification do you
have that will satisfy me that you have been a resident of
the State of Louisiana and Cadde Parish for at least one year?!
and then they usually ask you what they can show you, and I
tell them if they have a driver!s license that 1s a year old,
I will accept that, and if they do not have that, I inform
them that they can secure a copy of their Homestead Excemptlon,
the certificate which was signed that would prove thelr resi-
dency. In most instances they can elither produce one or two,"

At this point I will turn over the presentation to
Colonel Rosenfeld for the introduction of further oral testi-
mony.

Thank you.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: If the Commission please, at
this time we will introduce testimony bearing on our final
toplc, the tople being use of separate voting niachines.

The first witness to be called will be Ellis D,
Howard of St. Helena Parish,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your right

hand and be sworn. You do solemnly swear the testimony you
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are about to give will be the truth, the whole truth, and

nothing but the truth, so help you God?

MR, HOWARD: I will.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right., Will you have a

seat right over here, please.

TESTIMONY
OF
ELLIS D, HOWARD
ST, HELENA PARISH

VICE CEHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you have some documentary

evidence, Mr. Bernhard, on this parish?

MR, BERWEARD: We are getting it right away, Mr.

Vice Chalrman.

St. Helena is 1n this part of the state marked with

the letter "K." In this particular parish you will note

that non -whites age 21 and over number 2,104, Non -whites

registered, 1,204, The per cent over 21 registered, 57.2 per

cent.

The whites age 21 and over, 2,462, Those registered,

2,458, Per cent over 21 registered, 99.8.

Thank you.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you please state your

full name, your age, your residence, and your occupatvion?

MR, HOWARD: My name is Ellis D, Howard. My age

is 45. My residence, Greensburg, Louisiana, Star Route 2, Box

b3,

My occupation 1s farmer.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: <You have %o talk just a
1ittle loud or talk into that microphone.

MR, HOWARD: My name is Ellis D, Howard, My
residence, Greensburg, Louisiana. My age is 45 years old,
Greensburg, Louisiana, Star Route 2, Box 43, My occupation
is farmer.

VICE CHATIRMAWN STOREY: Have you been a farmer all
your material life?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sirx,

VICE CHAIRMAW STOREY: What typve of education did
you have?

MR, HOWARD: Completed third grade in elementary
school and went to adult class in 1956 and completed sixth
grade.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You can read and write well?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a reglstered voter in
your parish?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you been
registered?

MR, HOWARD: I registered in 1951, in the eighth
month, twelf'th day of 1951,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you been a registered

voter continuously since that time?
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MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you participated in
elections when they were held since 1951?

MR. HOWARD: No, sirj; not -- in 1951 I never got an
opportunity to participate in the election until 1954,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, what was the reason
you couldn®t participate? Did you try?

MR, HOWARD: Ves, 8ir; but there were threats of
violence and other different .difficulties that prevented me
from particlpating in the voting procedure until U. S. Marshall
was called in %o settle that situation,

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: When was he called in? What
time?

MR, HOWARD: THe was called in during 1950 ~- %o the
best of my recollection, it was 1952,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you have any difficulty
in voting after that tilme?

MR, HOWARD: No, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Now, will you just deseribe
briefly what those threats were, so far as you are concerned?

MR, HOWARD: Well, in the second ward there were
those who attempied to register and -~ to vote, and there
was several persons who set out to threat them with a revolver
and to pretend that they were not going to allow the Negroes

to vote during that -- in that parish.
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VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Well, now, who threatened, and
who had a revolver?

MR, HOWARD: Well, the gentleman that made the
threat was -- I think his name -~ he was a Smith. Perhaps one
of the other witnesses can bring out better than I can -~
Smith. But this was a threat, and this threat was rumored in
the community throughout the parishes,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You actually went to vote,
though, and were prevented from voting, is that correct?

MR, HOWARD: I wasn't in that group that went at
the time the pistol was shown, but this made me reluctant to
g0,

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: 1In other words, you had some
fear about going?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir; that is right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Is that right?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Now, what was the next tlme
you went and attempted to vote?

MR, HOWARD: Well, the next time that I went and
attempted to vote was after investigatlion of the FBI, and
they clarified that situation.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: In other words, after the
marshall moved in, you gaid -- in what year was that, !542

MR. HOWARD: I think that was ln, to the best of my
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recollection, *52, I think,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you voted since that
time?

MR.HOWARD:; Ever since, yes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, Now, in your
particular precinet and parish do:you vote through what is
called voting machines?

MR. HOWARD: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: ‘Qr secret ballots?

MR, HOWARD: Voting machines,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Voting machines.

Now, the first time you went, state whether or not
there was one or more than one vcting machine. |

MR, HOWARD: The first time that I went was in
July of 1954, and there were two in my voting precinct, two
voting machines,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You mean at the place where
you went to vote?

MR, HOWARD: Vote, yes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What were the two there for?

MR, HOWARD: Well, the reason for the two is
somewhat obscured.,. I don't know exactly why the two was
there, but there was two there.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, were you told at which

machine you voted?
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MR, HOWARD: Well, at that time that I voted I was
not told, but there were others who stated that they were
told.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, don't go infto the others
now. You voted at either machine you wanted to at that --

MR, HOWARD: No, sir; no, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Tell Just what you were
instructed to do at that time.

MR, HOWARD: Well, I was lnstructed -- the way the
situvation was, there were two voting machines, and there
were a door open where the Negroes gathered up, and they were
lined up at one door, and the whiltes went through the other
door, see, and there was a machine constructed right opposite
to each door, The whites marched to one machine, the Negroes
marched into the other one,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And you were 1in the line of
the Negroes?

MR, HOWARD: DNegroes, yes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Lined up with the Negroes
to vote at a certain machine?

MR, HOWARD: Certain machilne,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Then the whites 1lined up
to vote at another machine?

MR, HOWARD: Another machine,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is what you dild at that
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time?
MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir, that time.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Now, did you go back again
to vote after that?

MR, HOWARD: VYes, sir; I went back afterward,

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Did the same procedure follow?

MR, HOWARD: The same procedure followed,

VICE CHATRMANW STOREY: How many times have you
actually voted at that voting place, about?

MR, HOWARD: I have been voting at that voting
place ever since 1954, approximately about six or eight times.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: And you found the separate
machines each time?

MR, HOWARD: Yes; sir,

VICE CHAERMAN STOREY: The Negroes lined up for
one machine?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And the whites for the other?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir. And the first time -- I mean,
about the fifth time, at least as of January 5, 1959, 1in the
first gubernatorlal primary, I called it to the attention of
the Deputy Marshall at this voting precinect. This served the
purpose of disencouraging many Negroes hecause it is true
that the Negroes in that ward, the Negro registered voters,

outnumbered the white, and it created a large turmoil there
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and difficultles and disadvantages, standing around the major-
ity part of the day trying to get in to reglster.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You mean to register or to
vote?

MR, HOWARD: I mean to vote, rather, pardon me,
trying to get in to volte, and the whites would come in every
now and then, One would go right on in, and he would vote
and go back while the Negro was still standing there in a
line, waiting for an opportunity to vote when there were, two
machines there for their convenience, and only one machine
used for Negroes,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long did you stand in

line?
MR, HOWARD: I was 5300 ofclock before I got to
vote.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When did you go there?
e MR,- HOWARD: I went there that morning around 8300
ofclock,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And you stood in line from
8:00 ofclock to 5300 ofclock before you got to vote?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir; before I got to vote,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: About how many Negroes were
lined up there?

MR, HOWARD: Well, it was about -- it was about,

better than a hundred seemingly, to my estimation, to the
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best of wmy recollection, when I went there, but they were
continually comlng, and I was trying to allow them the oppor-
tunity to vote before they got disencouraged, and so 1
woulda't try to get in Their way or try to see to it that
everyone got a good opportunity, because I encouraged them_
to register and vote,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You say the other machilne
was not used all the time?

MR, HOWARD: No, sir; not only until the whites
went in.

VICE CHAIRMAW STOREY:; Did the white people have
to wait very long before they voted?

MR, HOWARD: ©No, sir; they would go in and vote,
Usually they don't come in crowds. They come in every now
and then, maybe two or three; well, they would go in and they
would vote, but the Negroes were there in a long line, %rying
0 -~

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What is the last time you
voted there?

MR, HOWARD: The last time I vobted there was on
August 27,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: This year?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Still have two machines at

that time?
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MR. HOWARD: No, sir; didn't have but one.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: August 27 this year?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Just one?

MR, HOWARD: Just one.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: White and Negroes both
voted there?

MR, HOWARD: On the same machine.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you have to wait long

then?

MR, HOWARD: No, sir, didn't have to walt long
then,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any questlons from the
Commission?

CHATRMAN HANNAH: Why did you not have to wailt
long on the 27th of August when there was only one machine?
Was it because there were fewer people voting, or they voted
faster?

MR, HOWARD: Fewer people voting. Now, on Decem-
ber 5, I called this to the attention of the Deputy Marshall
in the person of Mr, Carl Womack, and he stated to me that
that is the reason why they had the two machines, was for
segregation, and I asked him did he know the law on the supply
cf voting machines to the precinct and why they should have

two, and he saild no, if I didn*t tell him. I point out that
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the law stated that where the increasement of registered
voters exceeds 600, that the police- jury or whoever was
responsible was to see to it that that voting precinct be
supplied with two machines, and of course a thousand 3 and
15 hundred Y4, and he sald, "Well, we don'% have 600," I
said, "Well, I see that 18 the purpose of the two machines,"
because the Negro, the number of Negro voters, were 250, I
had a statement made of that total, and I don*t know exactly
how many whites 1t was, but I know the Negro voters outnumber-
ed the white voters.

That was the first time I called it to the attention
of anyone %o question the reason of that situation, and the
second time was January 9.

VICE CHAIRMAN STQREY: What year?

MR, HOWARD: That was this year, January 9. T
called it to the attention of one of the commissioners in
person of Mr., Hardy Reeves, I seen the situation existing
typical, and I asked him were they not golng to let the
Negro vote on both the machines, and he sald no, and then I
Just figured then that was the purpose of the two machines,
Just like the deputy had told me, for segregation.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are there other questions?

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: I would like to ask one more
question, sir, Your concern about the two machines largely

has to do with the matter of convenience., The Negroes were
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inconvenienced because they had %o walt, whereas the whites
were sble to vote without long delay.

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir,

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: You had no reason to question
that the votes weren't counted in the same way.

MR, HOWARD: Well, no, sir, we didn't have any
reason to question. Of course I don't know how They were
counted, and I don't know why, but I do believe that 1%
creates an opportunity for the votes to be shoved aside and
not being counted in certain elections,

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: That is a possibility?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Bubt you have no specific knowl-
edge or even anything further to say on that line.

MR, HOWARD: ©No, sir,

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: TIs there objection on the part of
‘you or your group to having the Negro vote recorded as such?
Of course obviously with the whites voting at one machine
and Negroes at another, it is very easy %o tell how the Negroes
vote or how the whites vote,

MR, HOWARD: VYes, sir,

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Is this undesirable from your
point of view, or is this immaterial?

MR, HOWARD: I believe that that was desirable to

tell which way the Negro voted and which way the white voted,
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from certaln rumors that existed after the results were
reported or counted.

CHATRMAN HANNAH: From your point of view you have
no objectlon to that?

MR, HOWARD: Well, yes, sir; I have an objection,
I think that the machine, I think that destroys the purpose of
the voting machine. I think the voting machine is placed in
these places for us to have a secret ballot, a secret vote, and
if these votes are disposed by :separate vobting machines, I
think it has destroyed the purpose of the voting machines.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Nothing further,

COMMISSIONER RANKIN: You say the procedure was
changed in the last election, and there was just one machine
there?

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir,

COMMISSIONER RANKIN: Was that because the other
one had broken down, or was it a change in policy, do you
happen to know?

MR, HOWARD: ©No, sir; I think that is because
usually, in those elections it was only -~ we were electing
a district jurist to division 8.

COMMISSIONER RANKIN: Turn-out was not as large?

MR, HOWARD: Not as large.

COMMISSIONER RANKIN: They thought one machine

could take care of 1iL?
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MR, HOWARD: Yes; sir.

COMMISSIONER RANKIN: You don'!t think it was a
change in policy.

MR, HOWARD: MNo, sir; I don't think it was,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I would like to ask a ques-
tion. You testifiled earlier that even though you were
reglstered, there were certain electlons in which you did
not participate because of threats of violence.

MR, HOWARD: Yes.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: And as the Vice Chairman was
questioning you, I gather that you were not personally
threatened.

MR, HOWARD: No, sir.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: But that you heard rumors --

MR, HOWARD: That's right.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: -~ that someone by the name
of Smith --

MR, HOWARD: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: -- had been flashing a gun,

MR. HOWARD: Yes.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: But you did not see any of
it.

MR, HOWARD: No, sir.

COMMISSTONER JOHNSON: ¥You Jjust heard the rumors.

MR, HOWARD: FHeard the rumor.



313

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: And because of the rumors
you refrained from voting?

MR, HOWARD: From voting.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I Jjust wanted to get the
record straight.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Anything else? Thank you
very much,

Next witness, Mr. Rosenfeld,

COLONEL ROSENFELD: Mrs. Minnie Lee Stewart, St.
Helena Parish.
A VICETCHAIRMAN STOREY:; Will you hold up your right
hand and be sworn, Do you solemnly swear the testimony you
are about o give will be the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, so help you God?

MRS. STEWART: I do.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: W1ll you have the seat
over there, please,

TESTIMONY
OF
MRS, MINNIE LEE STEWART
ST, HELENA PARISH

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you please give your

full name, your age, your resldence, and your occupation?

MRS, STEWART: I am Minnie Lee Stewart, Greensburg,

Louisiana, Route 2, Box 45, and I am a housewife, mother of
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eleven chlldren, and a farmer.

farm?

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Is your husband living?

MRS, STEWART: Yes, sin,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And you have eleven children?
MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And you and your husband

MRS, STEWART: I farm., He farms off and on, He

works at a little filling stabion and comes and farms, and I

run the farm,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You are really the farmer,
MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir,
VICE CHAIRVIAN STOREY: What 1s your education?

MRS, STEWART: At school I rated to fourth, but at

night school I went to eighth. I got an eighth grade certifi-

cate,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter?
MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you been
registered?

MRS, STEWART: Ever since 1952,

VICE CHAIRMAN ' STOREY: Have you voted continuocusly

since that time?

MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: In:zwhat ward or-precinct do
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you vote?

MRS, STEWART: Third ward, precinct one.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Third ward, precinct one?

MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: That is of Greensburg.

MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: St. Helena Parish.

MRS, STEWART: St. Helena, |

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I call it "Helena." Is
that the correct pronunciation?

MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I guess you notlice the
members of the Commission are not very apt in French.

MRS, STEWART: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you had any difficulty
in voting?

MRS, STEWART: Well, yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What has been the nature of
it?

VMRS, STEWART: Well, at one time I carried my father,
he was, you know -- he 1s 82 years old, and I carried him
down there, and I asked the commission to let me go in and
help him, by him not, you know -- couldn't see good. They
admitted me to go in. My mother went in ahead of me, and

when she went in ahead she was quite a long time, you see.
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she was old, and she fumbling around, and then after she was
fumbling around, I askeé¢ them could I go to the other machine
with my father. I said, "Come on, Papa, we go in here," be-
cause my husband voted on that machine that movnlng, and I
didn't know they had changed 1t and I say,."Le ts go in,"
and Mr. Hardy Reeves said no, and I say, “Why9 ‘My husband

voted on Ghat this morning° How.come I can't vote now9"

and he Says, "We done changed-eince then," :%h ’

 VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: 'Changsd to Awha'c‘? .

MRS, STEWART:— Put us all on-a segregated voting
machine, but when we go early, well, my husband, you see he
works and have to go to,work{ He Jhst went in oﬁ that machine
on the right-hand side, and we weet oh the 1eft ’ 1£,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOBEY: *Now?:how many times have you
voted since then, about hoﬁ.many?

MRS, STEWART: Every election. T voted.

' VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Well, hdve you gone to a
separate machine each election? e

MRS, STEWART: Each time. I went in, in this 1950 w-
this election we had, primary election, well, last election
I went 1n, and I believe the fifth one I went in and voted on
that machine, it bfoke down, and when it broke down, well, I
say, "Mr. Hardy," I say, "that machine over on that side," I

say, "it's working. Why do we have to stand here and wait?"

and he says, "Walt, we will see and get the clerk of the
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court,” which is Mp. Carl Johnson, "to fix the machine,"
and.I say, "We cantt stand here and wait that %time," I say,
"My husband got to go to work." He was right behind me., I
say, "You can't stand here, you just go on and come back."

He said, "No," he said, "wait. We will see how many is voted.

on this.machine." He said, "Tuwo over here and _five over ____ __ __ .

here," so we knowed then he must have been counting them,
else he wouldn'’t holler "Two." Just two white had went in on
that machine and voted, and five on this one and broke down
on that fifth one.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: How long was it broken down?

MRS, STEWART: I donft know, You see, I voted and
left,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You went to the other machine
and voted?

MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir. After I commenced to, you
know, golng on abouf the machine and we standing and waiting
and my husband had to go open up the 1little shop, then he
told me %o wait. He said, "Two over here. Did you all get
1t?" That is the commissioner, Mr, Hardy Reeves. "Did you
all catch that?" he says. "Two here, and therets five over
here."

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, now, was there a line
of Negroes wailting after you voted or not?

MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir, They was in line behind me,
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YICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you know whether they
voted there or walted until the machine got repaired?

MRS, STEWART: No, sir, After I was cubtting up so,
he switched them on that machine.

VICE CHAIRMAN STORE¥: All right. ©Now, did you
ever have any other incident in voting there?

MRS, STEWART: No, sir; I never had none,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are there questions of the
Commission?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I would like to ask just
one question. I gabther from your testimony, Mrs. Stewart,
that it is your bellef that the use of these voting machlnes
makes 1t possible Lo determine which way Negroes are voting
and sort of robs The vote of some of its secrecy, is that
what your concern is?

MRS, STEWART: Yes, sir,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: That is all, ~

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is all. Thank you.

Next witness.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: Next witness is Mr. Oscar Hall,
St. Helena Parish. ‘

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your right
hand and be sworn. Do you solemnly swear that the testimony
you are about to give will be the wruth, the whole truth, and

nothing but the truth, so help you God?
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MR, HALL: I do.
TESTIMONY
OF
OSCAR L, HALL
ST, HELENA PARISH

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you give us your full
name, your age, your place of residence, and your occupation?

MR. HALL: WMy name is Oscar L. Hall, My address
is Greensburg, Loulsiana, Route 2, Box 63. My age is 64 years
old. I am a farmer and part-time carpenter.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter?

MR, HALL: I am.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: By the way, what t&pe of
education have you had?

MR, HALL: Fourth grade,

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: You can read and write all
right?

MR, HALL: VYes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You first registered in 1952,
is that right?

MR. HALL: ©No, sir. I have been registered; I
registered in 51,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: 1951,

Mit, HALL: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you been registered
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continuously since that time?

MR, HALL: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you voted since that
" pime? '

MR, HALL.: No, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Never have voted?

MR, HALL: Yes, I have voted, but when I first
registered, why, the night before election we was sent word,
there was a man came around and notified -- there was Just
a few registered voters in my ward at that time. I think
there was only 17 -- |

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: By the way, you are in
Ward 2, Precinct 1 of Greensburg?

MR, HALL: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, go ahead.

MR, HALL: And there was a man came around, and
he said that he was sent to us by one of our white friends to
notify us not to come out to the polls the next day because
he felt there would be some bloodshed if we come out there,
and he wanted to be a friend to us and notify us not to come.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Was this man white or
colored?

MR, HALL: That come to us?

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Yes, sir.

MR, HALL: He was colored, but he was sent by a
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white man.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Was that generally spread
around through the community?

MR, HALL: Well, I think he notified every one of
the 17 that was registered at that time.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: There were 17 registered in
your particular precinct?

MR, HALL: A% that time, ‘

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And ward?

MR, HALL: See, that's when we --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You didnft go the next day
for that reason?

MR, HALL: No, sir, I didn't go.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What about the next election?
Did you go?

MR, HALL: Well, the next% election we went.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you have any trouble in
voting?

MR, HALL: No, sir; we had no trouble in voting.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you vote at a voting
machine?

MR, HALL: Well, at that particular time we didntt
have voting machines in St. Helena Parish at that time. We

voted by the old ballot, you mark a ballot.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: But you had no trouble in
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voting that time?

MR, HALL: Had no trouble that timeo

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What about the next time
you went to vote? C

MR, HALL: Well, the next time we went to vote,
when we would go by the commissioners and they would check
your registration card, and they would pub you in a line.
They had two lines, a colored line and a white line. They had
voting machines in a room, two doors go in the room, and a
line of colored going down to go in th%g door and a line of
white going and going in the other door, and the machlnes was
setting facing each deor to where they voted, and during that
day sometimes, I couldn!t say exactly what time, they closed
the door on those colored people, and they had to stand there
for over three hours for no cause at all, The machine
wasn't broke, but they Jjust closed the door and had those
people to stand there for over three hours and didn®t let
them vote at all,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you get to vote before
that?

MR, HALL: No, sir.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: Before they closed the door?

MR, HALL: No, sir; I did not.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you one of those who stood

in line?
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MR, HALL: I tell you what I was doing at that time.
I was hauling voters %o the polls, and I would go and get a
load and bring them there, and they would vote and carry them
back. and during the time that they had this door closed, I
had some people that was ageable people, they was real old
people, and they stood in line so long until they got sick, and
I had to carry those people back home without voting.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you ever get to vote your-

MR, HALLs; I finally got To vote late; late that
evening? I finally did.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Tell me this. You said each
machine faced a door, Was there any partltion or separation
between the two machlines inside the voting place?

MR, HALL: No, sir, there was no -~

ViICE CHATRMAN STOREY: ITn other words, tThey were in
view of each other?

MR, HALL: Thatts right; they were in view of each
other,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you ever have any more
difficulty in voting?

MR, HALL: Well, every time we vote, when we go to
the commissioners, they point you out in a separate line,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREV: And then you have %0 walt% in

line and take your turn?
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MR. HALL: Wailt in that line and take your turn and
go to that machine. If there 1s nobody at the other one,
you have to go %o that one machine.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: What about this year? Have
you voteé in any election this year of 1960°?

MR, HALL: Yes, sirs I have,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did they still have the
separate machines?

MR, HALL: St%till have -- now, this last particular
time when there was only Jjust two people running, a district
Jjudge, there was just a few voters turned out. There was
juss a very few voters.

VICE CHAITRMAYN STOREY: Did they have one machine
at that time?

MR, HALL: They had two 1in the ward:; in the second
ward they had two, and they did noi discriminate the machines
this last particular election, but all before that they did.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: On what date was that, the
last election? About when?

MR, HALL.2 Oh, I think it was in August, to the
best of my knowledge.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: August of 19609

MR, HALL: VYes, sir.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: There were not many vobers

at that time?
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MR, HALL: Very few; very few.

VICE CHAIRMAN STORE¥: Any questions of the
Commisslon?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I would just 1ike %o ask
you, I waut to get clear, Mr. Hall, just what your basic
concern is about these separate voting machinéso You indi-
cated that one of the results was to inconvenience people,

MR, HALL: Thatt!s right,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Inconvenience Negroes.
Well, it would inconvenience white people, too, wouldn't it,
if they were in a long line and the Negro machine was breaking--

MR, HAUL: The way I feel, that as far as I could
see 1%, 1T was ©o dlsencourage the Negroes and also to know

on what machine how many Negroes voted for different candi-

dates.,
COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: So that you have two concerns,
MR. HALL:; Yes, sir,
COMIZTSSTIONER JOHNSON: One is the incounverience to
Negroes --

MR, HALLS Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: -~ to have to walt, although
there 1s a machine available.

MR, HALL: That's right.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: And the other reason is

the possibility that an accurate account can be kept of what
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Negroes are voting and how many.

MR, HAUL: That®s right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other question? II not;
thank you, and call the next witness.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: Mr,., Clarence Knighton of St.
Helena Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your right
hand and be sworn. Do you solemnly swear that the testimony
you are about to give will be the truth, the whole truth,
and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

MR, KNIGHTON: I do.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have this seat over here.

TESTIMONY
OF
CLARENCE LLOYD KNIGHTON
ST, HELENA PARISH

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you give your full
name, your age, your residence, and your occupation?

MR, KNIGHTON: My name is Clarence Lloyd Knlghton.
My address is Post Office Box 83, Greensburg, Louisiana.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Your age?

MR. KNIGHTON: My age is 51 years old.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What do you do for a --

MR. KWIGHTON: Parti-time farmer and carpenter.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREV: So you farm and carpenter,
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What 1s your education?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, I hold a sixth grade certifi-
cate from the adult class,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You can read and write all
right?

MR, KNIGHTON: Very well,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: ¥You own your own farm?

MR, KNIGHTON: Yes, sir, I do,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been arrested?

MR, KNIGHTON: Never have.

VICE CHAiRMAN STOREY: Not even for traffic viola-
tion?

MR, KNIGHTON: Never have,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter?

MR, KNIGHTON: Yes, siwv.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Since what year?

MR, KNIGHTON: Since 19 and 51,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you participated in an
election since that time?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, at that particular time I
didntt.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, now, why didn®t you
at that particular time, right after you were registered?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, at that particular time we

registered in '51, and the gubernatorial election wag coming
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up in 52 in January, and we were planuning to particlpate in
the January gubernatorial election, but the same incident that
happened that one of the other witnesses testifigd, that there
were a man -« I will state his name -- who is a retired
merchant --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you mlnd stating his name?

MR, KNIGHTON: I say I will state his name -~ who
is a retired merchant of Greensburg, by the name of Mr,
Charles J. Cole, put another man, colored fellow, 1in an
automobiie, by the name of Sam Atkins and sent him around %o
all we Negroes® homes to bring us the word not.to appear at
the polls the next morning, because he felt like there were
going to bé some bloodshed and some trouble and what not,
and it would be Dbest for us not to come.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you sta& at home?

MR, KWIGHTON: I stayed home,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Was that true of the other
registered Negroes, too?

MR, KNIGHTON: That's right.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: In other words, none of
you who had registered voted that time because of that in-
formation?

MR, KNIGHTON: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Now, when was the next time

you voted or attempted to vote?
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MR, KNIGHTON: The next time I attempted to vote
was in 52 in July in a judges! electlion, They had some
district judge and some school board members and what not
wera running, and I attempted to vote at that time, and at
that time I ran into an obstacle at the poll by a man came out
to threaten me with a gun.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Tell us about that. Who
was it, if you know? -

MR, KNIGHTON: The mant's name, I knew him well,
Mr, Joe Redmore.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What did he say to you?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, I went up, and when I got up
to the door, I was standing at the door walting -- well, first,
when we approached the door, the commission met us at the
door and came out and locked the door and %told us that they
were going out for lunch, and so they went out, and they
stayed out for a little while, and ln a few minutes they came
back. So shortly after they came back, they brought this
man back with them, the intimidator, back along with them. So
after they went on in, then this man by the name of Mr. Joe
Redmore came out and asked what were I waiting there for, Were
I waiting to vote. I say I am. So then he had his gun down
in his bosom, He opened up his bosom and say, "You see this.
gun here?' I say, "I do." I say, "What about the gun? I have

been seeing guns all my life. Guns doesn't frighten me," I say.
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"What about the gun, Mr, Joe?"

He said, "Well, you Negroes better leave here. We
dontt want to have to hurt any of you., We don't want -- we
expecting trouble out here, and we don'!t want to have to hurt
any of you, and you better get away from here, because Negroes
are not going to vote in St. Helena Parish.,"

So I say, "Well, Mr, Joe, you know as well as I do
that we dld not come here to break in the polls, We don’t
have to break in the polls," I say, "Under the Constitution
and the laws of the United States givés us a right to go %o
the poll and vote, but now, Mr. Joe, if you golng to be the
man to intimidate us and keep us from voting, that's some-
thing else, and we will go back, and I hope you know what
you are doing." ~

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you leave then?

MR, KNIGHTON: I left.,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were there other Negroes
there then?

MR, KNIGHTON: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were they lined up with
you?

MR, KNIGHTON: One or two -- was two ladies there
with me.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Two Negro ladies?

MR. KNIGHTON: Negro ladies were there with me.



331

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And there were three of
you at that time?

MR, KNIGHTON: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And did all of you leave?

MR, KNIGHTON: We all three left.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREV: Now, at that time did you
observe whether there wers two voting places or not?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, at that particular time we
didntt have the voting machines.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Oh, I see, That was before
they got the voting machines,

MR, KWIGHTON: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STéREYs All éight, When was the
next time you went back, and state whether or not any inci-
dent occurred.

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, after that, after this hap-
pened, see, then we were successful vo get some federal in-
vestigatlon, and the federal officers came out, which they
have a record of it, and made some lnvestigation, and cleared
that matter up.

Well, in November in '52, which was the presidential
electlon, was the first election that I was able to participate
in, ‘

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, you haven't had any

incidents since then?
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MR. KNIGHTON: We%l, no incident,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Before I forget, this gentle-
man who showed you the pistol and told you to leave, was he
an official or not?

MR. KNIGHTON: No, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: He was not an offieial?

MR. KNIGHTON: Just a citizen,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Just a private white citizen?

MR, KNIGHTONs That's right,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did the commissioners see
that? I say, the voting authorities? .

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, they were in the room, sir.

The polling booths were upstairs in the men's coat room,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: This happened outside?

MR, KNIGHTON: Outside. I never did enter the door,
see, 1 was outside,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Now, then, since that time,
have you voted each time beginning with 19527

MR, KNIGHTON: Fach time, and every election.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have there been voting machines
or hand voting?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, the very first time we voted
we used the voting machines was in 1954 in July,

VICE CHAIRVMAN STOREY: Were there one or two the

first time you saw the voting machine?
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MR, KNIGHTON: We had %two, two voting machlnes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you line up separately
with the Negroes?

MR, KNiGHTON: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: The white people 1ined up
separately for the other voting machine?

MR, KNIGHTON: Yes, sir, \

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were you there when a vot-
ing machine broke down that one of the wiltnesses talked
about?

MR. KWNIGHTON: No, I wasn®*t. That wasn't in my
precinct. That was in another precinet,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I see. Well, has there
been a separate voting machine for the Negroes and for the
whites every tilme you have voted since 195279

MR, KNIGHTON: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I believe you said you never
had any more lncidents after the marshall and officers got
into it.

MR. KNIGHTON: That's fight; never had any more
trouble to get %o the poll.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Yes., Are there other ques-
tlons?

MR, KNIGHTON: I hadn't completed. I can bring it

on -- thils testimony comes on up until 19 and 60,
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VICE CHAIRMAY STOREY: All right. I thought I
asked you if you had any more incidents. Tell about anything
else that happened in connection with your voting.

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, anow, the next time that we
voted in a gubernatorial election was in 1956, which at that
time, in 1956, I happened to be there, and throughout. the
day, that was the time when we had the voting machines
1ocafedﬁin a room 1in the court house building. Well, the
Negroes had to line up on one side;, on the right, the whites
on the left, and:both lines went down the hallway. Well, on
the left was a door to enter the room, and on the right down
here was a door to enter the room, which the Negro line would
enter from this door and the white line would enter from this
door, Both voting machines were located, the whites over
hereland the Negro machine over here.

VICE CEAIRMAN STOREY: In the same room?

MR, KNIGHTON: In the same room.

~ VICE &HAIRMAN STOREY: All right.

MR. KNIGHTON: But at that same time the door were
closed, I think, around -~ if I make no mistake, 1t was
around 10:30 or 11:00 ofclock, the door was closed and locked.
The door that the Negroes entered into the poll were closed
and locked, and I stood there and watched the whites and
watched the clock for three hours and 15 minutes, the door

stayed locked and not a single Negro voting, but the whites
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was continuing to go in and vote.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. After the door
opened, did you vote?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, I had %o try to get the door
open first. I had to make some effort-to get the docr open.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: " Well, what efforts did you
make?

MR, KWIGHTON: T happened to be the one, after I
stayed there and checked and saw what was happening, so I
sald, "Well" -- another friend of mine was there -- and I
say, "Well," I say, "have you been keeping check on that
door?" He say yes. 1 said, "Do you know how long that door
been cloged?” He says yes. I say, "For three hours and 15
minutes. I noted haven't a single Negro voted, but the whites
are continually voting." So I say, "We are going to have %o

do something about this," So I said, "Let's go see the high

sheriff,."

So we went to the high sheriff, and I told him,

VICE CHAIRMAN: STOREY: You and the other man?

MR, KNIGHTON: Me and the other man.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Who was the other man?

MR, KNIGHTON: dJohn H. Hall.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, Tell what hap-
pened,

MR, KNIGHTON: I told the sheriff what were goiung
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on and what was happening, and I told him, "It's being done
for a reason," and I say, "I want you to see -- I came to you
to see if you can get the door open."

So he say, "Well, you know'I am not in no author-
ity today. See, they had a deputized marshall," he say,
"and he is in charge, but I will go and see what I can do
towards getting the door open."

So the sheriff went around there, and I don't
know what kind of results he got, but he wasn'’t able to get
the door open.

So we goes on over there to this same Mr. Charles J.
Cole that I mentioned some time ago, well, hls place., He owns
a Teed store, feed and seed store, and we told him what was
happening, and I was threatening or calling the federal
agents in. So he begged me to not do that. He say, "If
you will, it will hurt all of us, and I will go, we will go
and see what we can do aboub getting the door open." So
his wife in %urn say, "Well, I will go and see what's hap-

" so she went over there and say, "VYou all wait here

pening.,
until I come back."

T don't know what she told them, but in a few minutes
she came back and say the door is open.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: Did you go back?

MR. KNIGHTON: I went back.,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did the man who went with
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you go back?

MR, KNIGHTON: Thatts right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you all get in to vote?

MR, KNIGHTON: Oh, yes, we voted, but the llne had
started moving, see, but the line had been held up for three
hours and:15 minutes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I understood about that, but
you had no trouble in voting.

‘MR, KNIGHTON: No trouble, we didn't have any
trouble in voting.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: But you voted on separate
machines?

MR, KNIGHTON: Separate machines,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you ever have any more
unusual incident after that?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, in 19 -- I mean in 19 and 59
in December, which was thils last past year in the gubernatorial
election, I came, and I found the same sltuation going on.,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You mean the door closed?

MR, KNIGHTON: .No,‘the door wasn't closed, but
the voting machines at this time, they had moved the voting
machines out of the room, and the voting machines were located
out in the hallway. Well, they had, you know, it is four
different entrances to come into the building, and they had

the whites coming in from this end, and the Negroes coming in
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from the side over here, lined up in this door. Well, the
table for the commissloners was located, say, like here, and
the Negroes had to come in this door and make a circle
around and pass by the commissioners, which the whites was
coming from this other direction, and then they would point
the Negroes out to this separate machine. The white machine
was located over here, the Negro machine located over here,
and so. I called the attention of the commissioners on it,
and I asked them, did they know they were violating the law,
and they say they did. I called the marshall, so he say,
"Well, if you dissatisfiled about i%t, what we will do, we will
just stop the polls and switch the machines," which they did,
They stopped the polls and switched the machines, but they
continued to vote segregated machines,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. Did you have
any further incident this year?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, I never had any more other
than that.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.

Are there other questions?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I would like to ask a few
gquestions, Mr. Knighton., You have testified that on an early
date when you were participating in the vote, you recelved
information that 1t would be best for Negroes not to vote at

a particular election,
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MR, KNIGHTON: That's right.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Now, you have mentioned
two names specifically; Do you know of your own knowledge
that this Mr. Cole, I believe, actually sent this message
to the Negroes?

MR, KNIGHTON: Well, this Negro came and say Mr.
Cole sent him,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I see. I want to get
straight what the basis is for your testifying that Mr. Cole
sent --

MR, KNIGHTON: That's right., He said Mr. Cole.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: What you are really saying
1s that the Negro who came to you -

MR, KNIGHTON: That's right.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: =-- said that he was sent
by --

MR. KNIGHTON: By Mr, Cole.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I see.

MR, KNIGHTON: That's right.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Now, in connection with this
threat, the use of a gun, 4ild you report this incident to the
local authorities, either the sheriff or the police, that
thls private cltizen had threatened you with a gun?

MR. KNIGHTON: I did not.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: You didn’t report it te
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anyone?
MR, KNIGHTON: But we made an affidavit and got in

3 to the Federal Bureau of Investigatlon, and we were able

to get some federal aid, assistance, out there; some federal
officers came out and checked the situation.
COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: You did make an affidavlt
in which you némed this person?
MR, KNIGHTON: That's right.
COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: That 1s all.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other question? If not,
thank you very much.,
.) COLONEL ROSENFELD: If it please the Commission,
at this time we have presented all of the oral testimony which
we intend to present.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I believe, Mr., Bernhard, you
have some further documentary evidence..
MR, BERNHARD: If it please th; Commission, as
you are all well aware, our primary duty under the statute
is to investigate allegations in writing under oath that
certaln citizens are belng deprived of their right to vote
because of their color, race, religion, or natlonal origin,
and we have heard up to this moment evidence regarding that
. responsibility of the Commlssion,
Under the Aect, however, as the chalirman has already

indicated in his opening statement, the Commission 1is placed
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under a mandate to study and collect information concerning
legal developments constituting or possibly constituting a
denial of legal protection of the laws under the Constitution.

In addlition to analyzing the various voting complaints
that the staff received, we undertook an investigation which
would provide.us with a more precise understanding of these
complaints and also analyzed the various facilities which are
utilized or could be utilized under color of state law to
deny these rights.

We therefore at this time would like to introduce
into evidence varlous documents reflecting the creation and
purposes of the Jolnt Legislative Commitiee of the State of
Louisiana. We would like to make some mention as to the
geographlc distribution of the membership of the committee,
records of proceedings conducted under the auspices of the
Joint Legislative Committee, and In this regard, to indicate
the purposes of the proceedings, and more particularly, thelr
relatlonship to the Loulslana reglstration qualification laws,

This involves, as you have heard, problems of the
reglstrarst dlscrebtlon, of identification, and the use of
vouchers, of standards of good character, of proof of literacy,
and finally, cooperation of the registrars with the Unilted
Sfates Commission on Civil Rights,

We will further introduce documents which indicate

that action taken by private individuals or groups which
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involves the use of state facilities established by sftate
law in fact apd in law constitutes action of the state it-
self. When we have completed the introduction -- and by
"introduction" I mean marking for exhiblt -- theée various
documents, we will ask that all of the exhibits which have
been identified so far be accepted in evidence.

In July 1954 the legislature of the State of Louisi-
ana passed a resolubtion entitled "House Concurrent Resolution
Number 27." This fesolution establishes a committee of ten
individuals from the State of Louisiana, five from tThe Senate,
five from the House, and authorizes it to secure information
and compile data from any of the state institutions and
departments of state government, as well as from parish school
boards. The actlivity of this committee is directed primarily
to problems of school desegregation in the State of Loulsiana.
The intent of this resolution is found in the first paragraph,
and prior to reading the paragraph, I ask that this be ldenti-
fled as Exhiblt G. This would be Exhibit G-1.

(The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number G-1 for
identification, )

MR, BERNHARD: The intent 1s as follows, and T
quote from the document: "The legislature resolved itself
to provide ways and means whereby our existing social ofder

shall be preserved and our institutions and ways of 1life,



343
established by many generatlons of Louisianans and embodying
our fundamental law, shall be maintained,"

Ag further indicated in these resolutions, the
committee is empowered to call for the production of various
records in general to secure information from any of the
institutions and departments of state, government, and parish
school boards, and to emplpy whatever assistance is found
necessary to enable 1t to carry out the intent of this reso-
lution.

As I say, this was House Concurrent Resolution
Number 27.

In May of 1956 Concurrent Resolution Number 9 was
enacted by the legislature of Louisiana. This enlarged the
powers glven to the Joint Legislative Committee under the
1954 resolution and enabled it to investigate anything which
might bear on the determination of the State of Louisiana,
and I quote, "to maintain segregation of the races in all
phases of our life in accordance with the customs, traditions,
and laws of our state."

I ask that Concurrent Resolution Number 9 be identi-
Pled as Exhlbit G-2,

(The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number G-2 for
identification,)

MR, BERNHARD: The purpose of thils resolubtion is
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found in the first three paragraphs which I would like to
read the Commission with the Commission®s approval.

"Whereas, the rights and liberties of the people of
the United States are threatened as never before by enemies,
both forelgn and domestic, and

"Whereas, these enemies have concentrated their
atbacks upon the states in the south and are there employing
what has been described by these enemies as the party's most
powerful weapon, racial tension,® and success of these sub-
versive forces has been so great that they have been able to
plt one sectlon of the country agalnst another, one branch
of the Federal Government against the governments of the
several states, and in many places, the people of one race
against the people of another, and

"Whereas, in Louisiana the design of these evil
forces has been largely thwarted through the prompt and
vigorous action of the leglslature of Loulsiana, alded by
the other branches of the state government, with the result
the turmoll created by the Black Monday decision of May 17,
1954 has been held in check and relative peace and good will
has been maintained among our people,"

The final resolutlon affecting the Joint Legislative
Committee I ask be identified as Exhibit G-3,

(The document referred to was

marked Exhibit Number G-3 for

[ . RPN SO 3. I Rt S SR, |
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MR. BERNHARD: It is known as Housé Concurrent
Resolution Number 6, and it perpetuates the Joint Legislative
Committee in the following manner, and I quote: "Whereas,
the principal instrument of the legislature in this fight has
been the Joint Legislative Committee creabted by House Con-
current Resolution Number 27 of the General Assembly of the
State of Louisiana in the year 1954 and re-created by House
Concurrent Resclubtion Number 9 of the General Assembly of
the State of Louisiana in the ‘year of 1956, now there be it

"Resolved by the legislature of Louisiana that the
Senate and House of Representatives concur .in that said
Joint Legislative Committee be continued in full force
and effect and be appointed for the purpose of carrying on
and conducting the fight of the Louisilana legislature to main-~
tain segregation of the races in all phases of our life in
accordance with the customs, traditions, and laws of our
state, and in this connectlon, sald committee shall make
studies, provide information, draft legislation, in connection
with any of the foregoing, conduet investigations, hearings,
and take any and all actions that might be necessary or ineci-
dental to carry ou%t the purposes herein set forth." i

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Mr. Bernhard, I understand
all this documentary evidence, as well as any visual aid, is
for the purpose of showing the legal developments as under the

law we are obliged to ascertain.
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MR. BERNHARD: That is correct. Under our statute
this 1s the obligatlion we are attempting to fulfill now,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Go ahead.

MR. BERNHARD: We expect to show through subsequent
documentary evidence that the activities of this commitiee
in large measure have been directed to minimizing and reducing
the nunber of Negro voters in the state.,

This exhibit I ask be identified as Exhibit H.

(The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number H for
identification.)

VICE CHAIRMAN:STOREY: Will you turn it around so
all the Commissioners can see i, please, as well as the
reporiers?

MR. BERNHARD: And it is an exhibit showing the
‘various state agencles involved in the registration pro-
cedure, I do not think it needs any comment, but I think it
will be helpful during the course of the subsequent documenta-
tion.

I am now asking Mr. Mottolese to put up our final
visual ald which regards the geographlc representation of
membership on the Joint Legislative Committee.

I ask that this visuval ald be identified as
Exhibit I; that is, the geographlic distribution of the Joint

Legislative Committee members.
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(The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number I for
identification.)

MR, BERNHARD: The map before you shows the eight
congresslonal districts as well as the parishes which have
representation on this Joint Leglslative Committee. You will
note that the membership is concentrated in five extreme
northern parishes, and the other three parishes are in the
extreme southeastern portion of ILouislana. The congressional
districts from which the majority of the Joint Legislative
Committee come correspond to that area -- that is area marked
L and 5 ~- of the.state in which the percentage of the register-
ed Negroes is the lowest; that is, 6.6 per cent. It is from
thié same area of the state from which the preponderance of
allegations of the denial of the right to vote has been re-
ceived by this Commission.

I might also add that in this northern portion of
the state the per cent of Negro population, that is, 43 per
cent, according to the 1950 census, is higher than in the
rest of the state.

I would like %o lnterject at this point, since we
are discussing the complalnis recelved and the portions of
the state from which they have been received, that the Com-~
misslon has received complaints from 17 parishes in the Stabe

of Loulsiana. They are Blenville, Bossier, Caddo, Claiborne,
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DeSoto, East Carroll, Jackson, Madlson, Ouachita, Red River,

Washington, Webster, East-Fellciana, Plaquemines, St. Helena,
Tensas, and West Feliciana. Out of these 17 parishes, <yeive
of them are located in the Fourth and Fifth Congressicmygmg
Districts. We have recelved 1n excess of 150 complaints punop
the State of Loulslana.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are those in writing wumngep
oath?

MR, BERNHARD: Thatfs correct; in proper Sta“éutory
form,

During the latter part of 1958 and the first 4y,
months of 1959, the Joint Legislative Committee and the
director of the State Board of Registration held joint con-
ferences with public officials in eight congressional districts
of the state. The stated purpose was to formulate plang o
bring about uniform enforcement of the voter qualificatignp
laws of the State of Louisiaﬁa. He cites Section 102(E) or
the Civil Rights Act of 1957, and the Commission?s own Ryles
of Procedure, III(J)(1), which are designed to safeguarg the
rights of all persons and particularly to prevent testimony
or evldence which may tend to degrade, defame, or incrimingie
anyone. I shall .read pertinent sections from these minugeg
without attaching the name of any individual,

Present at these various conferences were varigug

public officials, officers of the Assoclation of the Citizeng
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Council of Loulslana were 1ln attendance at the conferences
held in the Pourth, Fifth, and Seventh Congressional Districts.
The minutes of all the meetings held in all congressional
districts contained a formal purpose clause to the effect
that the purpose in holding the meétings was to formulabe
plans to bring about uniform enforcement of voter qualifilca-
tion laws of the State of Louislana. Remarks of various
state officials to those assembled at the meetings indicate,
at %he very least, that the stated purpose was noi the ex-
clusive purpose of these meetings. Such comments as to pur-
pose are, and I will first read -~ I will ask that all of the
minutes held by the Joint Legislative Commitiee be ildentified
as Exhibit dJ.

(The document referred to was

marked Exhi;it Number J for

identification. )

MR. BERNHARD: The first statement aé to purpose
which was found in the minutves of the Seventh Congressional
District -eonferenece on upiform enfor¢ement:of Loulsiana veter
qualification laws on January 28, 1959, reads, "Public officials
stated" -+« and I quote -~ "We will prove that every parish
must eventually enforce our voter registration laws. The
entire emphasis in the integratlon struggle is shifting to
the flield of voter qualification enforcement, he said, and the

program we are beginning here today will prove the solution
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to our problems, not only in this seection of our country, bub
the entire United States. Our commlittes might reduce this
entire program to these questions. What is the federal
position? What is the state position? What is our position?
And what shall we do?"

The next excerpt from the minutes 1s ébtained from
minutes of the Sixth Congressional District conference held
on January 28, 1959, "A stabte official used" -~ and this is
a2 quote -- "a number of reconstructlon,communist, NAACP,
statistical and other exhibits to illustrate and document the
following points."

The sixth point, and I guote, reads, "The Negro
population in Louisiana, now 32 per cent, could very eésily
shift the balance of Louisiana political power in the direction
that it shifted during the reconstrucition era if Negroes are
permitted to register without regard to qualification provided
by law."

The next excerpt is from the nminutves of the Fourth
Congressional District held on Decewber 17, 1958, "A state
official stated at this point" -~ this is all quoting --

"that he felt the statewide program being started at the con-
ference would prove the key to victory in preserving our way
of life, This battle is for the whole way of life in our
domestic institutions., Every bit of lnformation coming

from the opposition, however, indicates that it is primarily
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a fight for the illegally vegistered Negro vote. We used
voter qualification laws before in 18393 to clean up our
registration rolls when we faced this sawme problem, and we
are here today laying plans to use them again for the same
purpose."

Documentary evidence has been introduced up
to this point showing the general stated and other purposes
of the Joint leglslative Committee, while variocus specific
statements were made which bear out some of the testimony or
bear on some of the testlimony, oral teatimony, you have heard
during the preceding day and this wmorning. This can be
broken down loglcally into the following over-all topilcs which
I will treat sepavately 1ln referring to the minutes of the
meeting.

First is discretion of the registrars, ldentification,
and vouchers; next, good character, proof of literacy, and
cooperabtion with the Commission on .Civil Rights.

As to general instructions given to registrars ~-
and I now quoite from the minutes of the First and Second
Congressional Districts -~-the : conference on uniform en-
Torcement of February 12, 1959, under the section entitled
‘Ability to Read and Writei; that is, 4(B). "The number of
times an applicant fails %o qualify and may reapply “is a
..practical matter for the registrar himself to determine. There

are no legal mlnimum or maximum limits provided."
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The :next is from the meeting of The Sixth
Congressional District on February 1l, 1959o A state Senator
asked the folliowing question: "If a registrar finds a card
not completely filled out, does he challenge the voter and if
so, what happens?"

Answer: “The applicant can go back and reapply for
registration.”

The state Senator: "After a person has been turned
down, how many times may he return and reapply?"

Answer: "That is an administrative matter for
the registrar to handle, There is no fixed law regarding
the number of times one may apply."

A good guantity of the testimony that was heard
yesterday dealt with the problem of identification. 4s to
this I now read from the Third Congressionsl District con-
ference on January 29, 1959. "A state offilcial stated points
of qualification. 2. Identification of person and proof of
resldence is required if the applicant is not known personally
by the registrar., The registrar may requlre that the person
have two reglistered voters of the person’s precinct appear
to identify him if the regisirar is not satisfied with the
personts own identiflcation. This procedure is particularly
applicable to Negroes since 1%t 1s difficult for most registrars
who are whitve to differentiate between persons of the Negro

race, determine age, et cetera.”
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The next section relates to The tests of Jgofp
character, and this is from the minutes of the Firs\i‘;»an <3
Second Congressional District conference held on Februae.b,&_ 12,
1959, I quote: "7. Good character of the applicant m‘-‘&t

be established. Parents of illegitimate children are :3_1._,@11 .
= gible

for registration. A. The Welfare Department is now r%e..vi ;
ewing

i%s policies with regard to releasling information %o c:af.pi 11
—— c-a s

for the purpose of establishing the character of partE g o "
o

illegitimate children on welfare rolls who also are a3
}gzalicants
for voter!s registration,”
The next 1s an excerpt from the meeting on

Becemer 17,
1958,

"In reply %o a question pubt to him on the s .
uh?—'ect, a
state officlal advised registrars that aspplicants fcse Tepi
-~ g s_

tration may be disqualified as of unfit character iFE> the
Y are
guilty of concubinage or if they have illegitimate @ffap 1 "
LIiNg.,

Thase are introduced for the record at th ig t1

me,

and I would ask that during the course of the next Tey —
onehs

the Commission btake note of the change in the welif= g rol1

membership, which the Commission may have some know:g_edge ,
o
now.

The next sectlon relates to the questiora op
T Qualifi-

catlon of literacy. This was heavily lnvolved in <ne tegti
. S -

mony yesterday, and I would like %o read to you s <me of &
e

statements from these conference minutes. This i s £rop th
e
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Seventh Congressional District, held on January 28, 1959,

I quote: "6. The key to the solution of our whole
problem lies in interpretatlon of the Constitution, our best
test of intelligence. In applyling this test, the reglstrars
were advised to use a set of 24 model cards distributed to
all present."

They have been introduced in evidence-and properly
identified,

"D, Constitubional tests are a test of native
intelligence and not book learning. Experience teaches that
most of our white people have this native Intelligence while
most Negroes do not,"

The next 1is taken from the Eighth Congressional
District conference held on February 12, 1959, A state
official sald, and this is under 6(B), "The applicant must
give a reasonable interpretation of a speciflic clause of
the Constituticn, not a legal interpretation in which the
citation of a court case and so on would be reguired. The
registrar uses his own discretion in determining whether or
not the applicant meets the constitubional test."

The next relates to minutes from the Sixth
Congressional District conference, February 11, 1959.

A state Senator asked, "Who passes on the adequacy
of interpretation given to the weaning of the Constitution

by applicants?®
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A state official replied that only the registrar
has such authority.

A state Senator asked, "Is the registrar required
by law %o demand an interpretation of the Constitution?”

Answer: "The regquirement applies to all, and it
is mandatory."

L stabe Senator: "Registrars should require a
written reply rather than an oral cne."

Answer: "A written reply may be required. That -
is permissible and an administrative responsibility of the
registrar. It is optional."

The next is minutes of the First and Second
Congressional Districts, February 12, 1959, and I quote: "We
in Plaquemines adopted the card system discussed here earlier
back in 1954 at the time we adopted permanent registration
in our parish. This was soon after the Supreme Couri's
Black Monday-decision° You will note on the back of the card
there is a suggested resolution proposed for use by police
Jurors calling upon the registrars to use these cards. The
policy Jury in your parish is the appointed authority and
the governing commission, Our policy Jjury felt it had
authority to require our registrar to comply with this request
and use the cards."

The final indication of the purpose of the constitu-

tional interpretation cards which have been discussed has been
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reflected in various statements made subsequently by state
officials, and one particularly was reported in the August 4,
1959 edition of the Times Picayune as reported by Robert
Wagner, a Times Picayune correspondent. It was entitled,
"Winnfileld, Louisiana." It sald, "Winn Parish voter —
registrar, Mrs. Mary ' C. Flournoy, took *a vacation! Monday
after charging segregation leader, W. M, Rainach, with
‘creating a rabble-rousing mass.! The elderly registrar
told Citizens Council 1eaderé here Monday morning that no
more voter challenges would be accepted until she returned
from vacation August 28. Segregation 1eéders, she sald, want
her %o *follow the beook! when 1t suited thelr purpose, bub
not when it conflicted with their political aims, 'Rainach
told me that if I can’t fail them any other way, I could pull
those constitutional cards on them, "

I ask that this newspaper clipping be identified
and marked as Exhibit J along with the minubes.

{The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number J for
identification,)

MR, BERNHARD: The last section relating both to
the testimony of witnesses and also to the position of the

United States Commission on Civil Rights is taken from the

Seventh Congressional District conference, January 28, 1959,

and I quote, A state official said: "3. The Civil Rights
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Commission need cause no concern for registrars if they adhere
strictly to the laws now on our books and do not discriminate
in the administration of the laws. There is no need for
discrimination on the part of the registrars in order to sub-
stantially eliminate the bloc vote, since nature has adequately
done this for us."

The last of the guotes, excerpts, I would like %o
read from these minubtes is from the Flrst and Second Congression-
al District meetings, February 12, 1959, and I quote: "4,
Registrars do not have to worry about the FBI as well as
agents of the Civil Rights Commission. They do not have to
answer questions put to them by elther, If any federal of-
Ticial or employee comes into a registrart!s office, the
registrar should ask that he put any request in writing and
inform him that he will take the writien request under ad.--
visement. The reglstrar should then notify the Attorney
General, the director of the Board of Registration, the Joint
Legislative Committee, his policy Jjury presidents. and his
district attorney."

That 1s introduced to show, bear on some of the
ways in which the entire state machinery is involved in the
votlng procedure during the leglslative period of 1960 -~

VICE CHATIRMAN SfOREYz Pardon me; Mr., Bernhard.

Did I understand that is the last quotation from the minutes?

MR. BERNHARD: Yes, and I will ask that all of the
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minutes be introduced in evidence later,

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: All right. I think in view
of the other evidence, that maybe this is a good Time to take
a break, since you are going into a different set of documents,
is that correct?

MR, BERNHARD: That is correct.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: We will take a ten minubest
break,

(Recess. )

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you ready to proceed,
Mr, Bernhard?

MR. BERNHARD: Yes, Mr. Vice Chairman,

We have completed that portlon of the documentabion
which deals with the conferences conducted under the auspilces
of the Joint Legislative Comnittee with various reglistrars in
some of the parishes which were indicated. We would now like
to introduce and pave marked as exhibit K~1 the acts recently
passed by the legislature of the State of Louisiana.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are all of these documents
for the purpose of ascertaining legal developments as charged
under the Act?

MR. BERNHARD: That is correct.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Go right ahead,

MR, BERNHARD: One of the acts passed on July 7,

1960, approved by the Governor on that date, was a law
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amending the form to be used by voters fér application for
registration. This Act.may become effective only if a
proposed amendment to Article VIII of the Louisiana Constitu-
tion is finally adopted in the general election on November
1960, The legislative enactment is submitted as:part of the
1sws and general exhlbits covering the acts of the 1960
legislature and marked Exhlbit K-l-a,

(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit K-l-a.)

MR, BERNHARD: I believe it to be unnecessary to
comment in any detall on the acts, That can be done later
during our studies of the laws themselves.

One act that was passed during this legislative
period created the State Sovereignty Commission, and I would
like to read you, first, the purpose of the State Sovereignty
Commission and then a statement that it has made.

"Whereas, the legislature of the State of Loulsiana,
acting under the police power of the sovereign State of
Louisiana under the rights guaranteed it by the Tenth
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of Amerieca,
finds there 1s a definite need for legislation creating a
State Sovereignty Commission whose purpose it will be %o
safeguard those rights from encroachment by any agency of the

Federal Government or by any other state government and to
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preserve those rights necessary for The well being and safety
of its citizens and for the orderly conduct of governmental
affairs, be it enacted by the legislature of Loulsianas

"Seetion 1. That there is hereby created the
executive branch of the State of Louisiana Sovereignty
Commission to be known as the Stabe Sovereignty Commission."

Very 1little activity is known on the part of The
staff as %o what the State Sovereignty Commission has done so
far. I would like to have marked as Exhibit K-2 a statement
made by the State Sovereignty Commission relative to the
purpose of it, and I will read just one very short portion.

(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit K-2,)

MR. BERNHARD: "When we speak of the sovereignty of
the several states, people generally think of segregation.
As to segregation they think first of schools. However, I
concelve the function of this commission to be one which
encompasses the whole broad field of states! rights, and
though segregation is a prime part of this, it is nothing
more or less than that. This is not to say that we should
not at this time concern ourselves first and foremost with
the problems of integration of skhools. Probably we should,
However, we should not overlook equally pressing and almost

as well publicized problems respecting voting rights, tldelands,
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transportation, and other related areas."

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Mr., Bernhard, would you
mind 1lifting your voice a little? Sometimes it doesn?t
carry clearly, so all in the room can hear,

MR. BERWHARD: Yes, sir,

The following and final section of the documentary
evidence reflects that actlion taken by private individuals
who make use of state facllitiles established by state law
in faet and in law may constitute action of the state itself.
More specifically, the following documentation involves the
activities of the Assoclation of Citizens Council of
Louisiana. I would first like to have marked as Exhibilft
L-1 the charter, cervified copy of the charter, of the
Agsociation of Citizens Council of Louisiana.

(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit L-1,)

MR, BERNHARD: Under Article II, the ObJjects and
Purposes clause, and I quote: 1 -- and this is the purpose ~-
"mo protect and preserve by all legal means our historical
southern social institutions in all of their aspects, to
marshall the economié resourcea of the good citizens of thils
state, combating any attack upon these social institutions,”
and 4, "To teach the members of this organization, other

organizations, and individuals seeking.to cobtaln the objectives
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set forth herein and the public the basic principles of
government as set forth in the Constitublion of the United
States, to instruct them as to their duties ard responsibilities
as well as their rights and liberties as citizens of the State
of Louisiana and the United States, to encourage them in
their efforts in the protection and preservation of our American
way of 1life, to reveal the true basic elements of soclalism
and communism S8o as to fortify them to reject the assault
which is constantly being waged upon our institutions by
the socialistic‘and communistic forces in this country.”

The:Association of Citizens Councill, subseguent to
the establishment of the United States Commission on Civil
Rights, dissiminated a letter carrying the names of at
least two indiviéuals who were state officers and also
officers of the association. These same public offlicers had
attended the various conferences on uniform enforcement of
Louisiana voter qualifications law. This letter indicates
the intended role to be played in a cooperative manner
through the Joint Leglislative Committee, the state government,
and Citizens Councils., As relevant, I would like to read to
the Commission two short paragraphs, and I ask that this
be identified as Exhibit L4,

(The document referred %o was
marked for identification as

Exhibit L-4.)
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MR, BERNHARD: I quote. “Loulsiana looks like an
easy target. We have 130,000 Negroes registered to vote in
one parish; 45 per cent of the voters are Negroes. Many
7 are registered illegally. The federal Civil Rights Commis-
sion 1s trying to register still more. If they succeed, and
“the Negroes vote en bloc in the 1960 election, they may well
select the next Governor of this state. Then the new re-
construction era would be ushered In. Bubt the thing that can
stop the integration movement dead in i%s tracks and prevent
a new reconstruction era is a thorough golng clear-up of our
registration rollg.. Under the leadership of the Joint
Legislative Commlttee, the state government 1s doing its
‘) part to do this., The rest must be done by The people under
the leadership of the Citizens Council."
There are two exhiblts which I will make no refer-
ence %o except %o have them identifiled for later study. I
would like them %o be identified as Exhibit L-2, which is
the Citizens Councils, Theilr Plaiform, and L-3, the Citizens
Councils In Louisiana.
(The documents referred to
were marked Exhibits Numbers
L-2 and L-3 for identification.)
MR, BERNHARD: I would now like to have identified
. as Exhiblt L-5 a pamphlet entitled "Voter Qualification Laws

In Loulsiana." The sub +title is "The Key to Victory in the
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Segregation Struggle,” and the title underneath that is,
"p Manual of Procedure For Registrars of Voters, Police Jurors,
and Citizens Councils," and it is dated December 1958. I_ask
this be identified as Exhibit L-5.
(The document referred to was
marked Exhibit Number L-5 for
identification.)
MR. BERNHARD: This pamphlet has received attention
of the Joint Legislative Committee, and in the minutes of
the Eighth Congressional District counference of January 15,
1959, it was indicated that this is, and I quote, "a booklet
written by," and it gives the names of two public officials,
In another Congressional District conference,
again referring back to the minutes of the Joint Legislative
Committee, held on January 9, 1959, a state officlal, and I
quote from the minutes, "completed his briefing of registrars
concerning the qualifications necessary for voter applicants
before they may register to vote in Loulsiana. Complete in-
structions, he told his audience, may be found in the pamphlet
'"Voter Qualification Laws In Louisiana.!" That is Exhibit
L-5.
"A state official viewed the pamphlet ‘Voter Quali-
fication Laws In Loulsianafas a gulde for registrars and
voters and others in enforcing the law and stated the pamphlet

would be mailed with the minutes to each person attending the
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meeting or invited to be present.

"p participant at this conference asked what connec-
tion the 'White Citizens Councils'! had with registrars and
with voter qualification law enforcement, A state official
advised him that councils are not white citizens councils but
Citizens Councils. He further stated that the Citizens
Councils which participated in these conferences had no of-
ficial connection with the conferences currently being held
by the 0ffice of the State Board of Registration and Joint
Legislative Committee."

These were taken from the minutes of the Fifth
Congressional District, January 8, 1959.

The forward of this pamphlet which was given to
the various registrars contains the following language: "The
communists and the NAACP plan to register and vote every
colored person of age in the south. While the south has slept,
they have made serious progress toward their goal in all the
southern states, including Louisiana. They are not concerned
with whether or not the colored bloc is registered in accordance
with law, They are interested only in seeing that all persons
in this bloc are registered and in using their votes to set
up a federal dictatorship in the United States."

Further down 1% states, "At least 90 per cent of the
bloc that they plan to misuse would have to be registered

illegally in Loulsiana because 90 per cent of them cannot
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meet the voter qualifications prescribed by law., In fact,
90 per cent of this bloc now registered and being used by the
NAACP to control some of our elections are registered in
violation of our laws and illegally influencing the election
of our officials." -

Further down, "The ACCL" -- that is the Asscciation
of Citizens Councils of Louisiana -~ "has prepared this manual
of legal procedure which registrars in Louisiana may follow
in preventing illegal registration. The manual outlines the
methods by which parties who have been registered illegally may
be removed by law from the registration rolls. The consistent
use of this manual will be especially helpful to our state and
local officials and local Citizens Councills in lending the
registrars of voters the support and guidance that they must
have in carrying out the all-important job of enforecing our
voter qualification laws,"

The final part of the forward is short. "We are
in a 1life and death struggle with the communists and the
NAACP to maintain segregatlon and preserve the liberties of
our people., The impartial enforcement of our laws is the
key to victory in this struggle."

The pamphlet contains a general introduction and
proceeds to set out first the various registration requirements
under the Louilsiana Constitution and statute, and indicates

in some detaill the methods by which registrars can remove the
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111ega11y registered voter, It points out -- and I can point
out in this appendix the contents. Appendix A is an affi-
davit, in case the registration of the voter is challenged,
and then the printed citation of notice to evase. The Com-
misslon may recall some testimony regarding that yesterday.

The pamphlet does contain a conclusion which in-
dicates that the registrars of each parish -- and I quo%e ~-
"must be exceedingly careful to observe the legal rights of
all of the citizens of the parish. The whole purpose of our
registration laws is to prevent the registration of ignorant
bloe voters who would become the tools and pawns of scheming
adventurers, If our laws are intelligently and fairly ad-
ministered, they will accomplish our purpose automatically."

Part of this pamphlet, in setting out certain
registration requirements, has under the paragraph Number 2
on page 4 marked "Identification," and it states, "Unless
the applicant is personally known to the registrar, he must
establish his identity. The statute itself does not require
that the applicant be personally known to the registwar. The
statute merely requires that the registrar or applicant be
able to identify himself,"

In this same paragraph 2 it says, "The registrar

may require that the applicant produce two registered voters

e e

W\
from his precinct to identify him. ~The revised statute of

4

Louisiana, 1837, does not state that the registrar may
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require the applicant to produce two registerii/jgffféjfggg___,/
‘identify the registrant unless the registrar,” and I quote,
"has good reason to believe he is not the same person.”

There is one other matter which does not seem to
accord with the registration laws of Louisiana, and 1% deals
with the so-called paragraph 6 as %o the persons unable %o
complete registration forms in thelr own handwriting. It in-
dicates that in each of the various cases which are set out
here, the applicant shall not be registered unless he brings
with him two qualified electors. Actually, the Loulsiana
statute requires witnesses only when a person is unable to
£ill out an application because of physical disability or
because he is unable to write English., The latter group
does not include illiterates which are referred to in this
pamphlet. ZIlliterates are specifically exempted by the
statute from writing the application form, and they are
covered by the witness requirements.,

Up to this point the Commission has heard testi-
mony and various documentatlon regarding purges, which is the
removal of names from the reglstration rolls and the efforts
of individuals to have their names restored. The official
counter affidavit of retention which was referred to yester-
day, which i1s furnished the voter when his qualifications
are challenged, permits' three individuals to swear only to the

propriety of the residence -~ and I emphasize "residence" --
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of the challenged voter, but not toc any other qualifications.
I have referred previously and had wmarked for identifilcation
the case of Thomas v. McElveen, a state court decision, which
makes it clear that if you challenge a voter for any reason
other than lmproper residence, this 1s tantamount to cancel-
lation of that person from the registration rolls. The
court in this case used the following language, and I quote =-

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you tell what court 1t
is, Mr. Bernhard? And the citation?

MR, BERNHARD: It is the case of Thomas v. McElveen,
which I have previously had identified as Exhibit E. It was
decided in the 22nd Judicial District Court of Louiéiana, Parish
of Washington, Civil Docket Number 18,751. It was decided
on April 6, 1959, and the relevant quote regarding the fact
that if you challenge a voter for any purpose other than resi-
dence, that voter may not be able to get back on the rolls.
The court noted, state court, "The testimony and evidence
presented show that each of the challenges, including the <
exhibits, were based on grounds other than non resldence of
the challenged voter., On the other hand, the counter affi-
davits presented to each of these challenges simply state
tha§ the challenged voter had resided in Washington Parish,
Ward 1, Precinct 1 The length of time required by law. Hence,
these counter affidavits are irrelevant to the challenges.

They do not prove their right to remain on the registration
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rolls by written affidavit, Under these clrcumstances, the
counter affidavits cannot be considered to be in proper form
nor» the challenges disproved, and the ten-day perilod having
elapsed, the challenged éegistrants must be forthwith removed
from the registration rolls."

It goes on at some 1éngth beyond that.

Finally, as to this question of challenge and re-
moval from the rolis, the céurt in this same case had some
very significant comments to make, The court noted, "The
registrar does have discretionary powers in that he is the
sole judge when the counter affidavit by .three legally
registered voters legally answers the challenge and actually
proves the right of the challenged voter to remain on the

registration rolls,”

and it goes on to say, "What we are
badly in need of is new legislation defining and clarifying
the duty of the registrar in these eventualities. The law
1s too indefinite and places too great a responsibility on
the part of the registrar to determine when and how the
challenged registrar has proved hls rights to remain on the
registration rolls."

One further comment from this case, and I will say
no more about it, It does relate to some of the testimony

that you have heard, and it shows the tie-in between the

various agencies mentioned on here along with the activities

of the Cltizens Council,
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"Shortly after the first of the year, the legis-~
lature, the chilef executive, and the Attorney General of
Louisiana embarked upon an educational program deslgned %o
bring about uniform enforcement of voter qualification laws in
this state:; This would insure, for example, that the ballot
of Sam Smith.from Céddo Parish would not be nullified by an
illegal ballot cast by John Doe, say, in Orieans Parish, This
program was extensively reported by the press, and knowledge
thereof is so common that this court may well take judilelal
notice of it. That such a program was necessary became
readily apparent immediately after its commencement. It
aroused a great deal of interest among public officials and
even ordinary clitizens, It is no doubt the causa causans of
defendants? search for illegal registration in Washington
Parish,"

The 1ast bit of documentary evidence will be
the certified copy of a case entitled United States of
America versus the Asscciation of Citvizens Councils of
Louilsiana, et al, decided July 27, 1960,

"The action of individuals or groups of individuals,
as have been mentioned in challenging reglstered voters, has
been held to constitute state action. In an action by the
United States to enjoln persons engaged in purging Negro
registrants from the voting rolls of Washington Parish, the

Pederal District -‘Court for the Eastern Districi of Iouisiana
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reached the following conclusion in granting relief," and
I quote: "The individual defendants, in challenging the
registration status of voters, were acting under color of
the laws of Louisiana, Providing for and supervising the
electoral process is a state function. The individual de-
fendants participated in this state fwiction under express
authority of Loulsiana law, uslng state facilities made
available to them, Their action formed the basis for the
gemoval of the eitizens from the reglstration rolis by fthe
defendant registrar actving in his official capacity."

That was declided in the case of U. S. v. lMecElveen,

For the final nobte, I would like to indicate that
subseqguently an action was brought by the United States .to
enjoin the Citizens Council of Loulsiana from utilizing
state facilities to accomplish the purge of Negro voters from
the registration rolls.

The language of the court, in considering the
nature and activities of the Citizens Council, is significant
as it bears particularly on the voter registration laws, and
I quote: "The individual defendants and the Citizens Councils
intend that the 14th and 15th Amendments are limlted o state
action as distinguished from individual private actlon, and
that therefore Title VI of the 1960 Civil Rights Act is un-
constitutional in its attempted application to them, The

acts complained of triggered actlons on the part of the
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registrar that were ministerial under state law. We are
compelled to hold that the alleged action taken by the in-
dividual defendants and Citizens Councils constitubed state
action within the meaning of that term as held in the decided
cases."

That is the conclusion of our introduction of
documentary .evidence.

Thank you.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Thank you, Mr. Bernhard,

A1l of the documentary evidence will be incorporated

in the record.
(The documents referred to,
previously marked Exhibits
1, a, A-1, A-2, B, C, D, 2, 3,
4, 5, 6, 7, B, F-1, F=2, F-3,
F-4, G-1, G-2, 6-3, H, I, J,
K-1, K-l-a, K-2, L-1, L-2, L3,
L-l, énd L-5 were received in
evidence.)
VICE CHAIRWMAN STOREY: Mr. Rosenfeld, are there any
other witnesses to be heard from?
COLONEL ROSENFELD: No, sir; there are not,.
VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Mr. Gremillion, may I ask
you -~ I am sure your assistant informed you that we would be

glad to hear from any registrars who might appear this afternoon.

-
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Have you heard at this time whether or not anyone
will appear? |

ﬁRO GREMILLION: Mr., Storey, it 1s a physical im-
possibility, as I am sure this Commission can appreciate,
for wme %vo bring'any regilstrar of voters before this body on
such short notice., I received your notice at 25 minutes to
10:00,

Now, in all fairness, and without trying to be
argumentative in the slightest, I asked Mr, Tiffany, from
letters that have been produced in the record, to let me
know whether any registrars were going %o be subpenaed so
that we could be prepared. I was advised by Mr Tiff'any that
he would give me a list of witnesses when they were completed,
words to that effect, and would notify me simultaneously., OF
course I received no list of witnesses.,

For that particular reason 1t was lmpossible for me
to bring any rebuttal svidence before this Commission.

I understand that you have received several tele~
grams which you read this mornlng when I was not present,
when Mr. Dalton was here. I received a telegram just a minute
ago concerning the testimony of Dr. Reddix, I believe Mr,
Hanrah received it, and I don't know whether Mr. Hannah in-
tends %o read 1t, If he does not, I would like %o read it.
Moy I have that privilege, sir?

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: Mr, Gremillion --
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MR, GREMILLION: And I have a short stétement I
would like to make to the Commission.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: Apropos of the points you
brought up at this time, you weren't here this mornlng, but
we introduced some ~- I think Mr. Dalton was,.

MR, DALTON: Yes.,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: -« some exXcerpnbts from testi-
mony, at which you were present, of two reglstrars. We had
introduced this letter, copy of the letter to you, that
you will recall the last paragraph reads, "I am pleased to
enclose a copy of the Rules of Procedure which the Commission
will follow in the conduct of these hearings. The nature
of the hearings wlll be to hear facts as to whether or not a
citizen or citizens of the United States are being deprived
of thelr right to vote and have that vote counted because
of race, color, creed, religion, or national origin," and
then that was supplemented later as to the notice and time
and place.

A letter came from the Soverelignty Commission, and
Tthis 1s the final paragraph of The reply to the Sovereignty
Commission chairman. "The hearings will be open to the pub-
lic. Public officials and representatives of the State of
Louisiana will be permitted to appear and offer testimony
relevant and materlal o the issues, and in accordance with

the Rules of Procedure of thils Commission, a copy is being
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" and 1% is s'igned "Sincerely

enclosed for your information,’
yours," and then it is true that further advice was given to
you that as and when any registrars were subpenaed, you

would be notifiled.

MR, CGREMILLION: I agree with you.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: None were subpenaed,

MR, GREMILLION: That's right.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: And none were notified %o
be present by the Commission.

Wow, we have concluded our formal part of the
presentation., Out of courtesy we notified Mr, Dalton this
moraing, in response to those telegrams, that if any
registrars wanted to appear thils afternoon, beginning atv
2300 ofclock, we would remain in session all day. I realize
there are distances., Some of them are closer, But we did
not subpena any registrars, as you know. If we had, we would
have given you & list.of them In advance as we did at the
Shreveport hearing.

Now, having sald that, as to the telegram that you
mention, we are not going to introduce the original. The
original came to Dr. Hannah, and I believe a copy came to
you. 1 think the reasons are obvious, in reading the telegram,
It will not be introduced, and we do not belleve that it is
pertinent for you to introduce i%, and it is not relevant to

the lssues that we have.



378

MR. GREMILLICN: It shows why Dr, Reddix won't
register, if he is carrying on a protest campaign for his
failure to register. Father Hesburgh was very much interested
in 15, and I am golng to apprize him of it individually, and
I am cerbvainly going to release the telegram to Tthe press.

I have a short statement that I would like To make
if you will give me that privilege.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.

MR, GREMILLION: I will be glad to send you a copy
of the statement for you to read prior to reading i%t. and ifl
you den't agree with 1%, it is perfectly all right with me.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, now, Mr. Gremillion --

MR, GREMILLION: Dean, let me say one more thing.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: May I finish first, Mr.
Gremillion?

MR, GREMILLION: Yes, silr,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You are perfectly familiar
with the rules,

MR, GREMILLION: Thoroughly.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You are perfectly famillar
with the decision of the United States Supreme Court, and
we are goipng to follow that decision in the conduct of these
hearings in accordance with our rules. You realize that
these rules provide tThat counsel may accompany any client,

advise him as to his comstitutional rights, but as to actual
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MR, GREMILLION: Thank you for »uling me ouft of ‘
. order.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I appreclate your courtesy,
' your deference, and you will remember yesterday morning you
said you were attending as an observer,
MR, GREMITLION: That 1s correct.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Thanlk you, sir,
Now, I believe this concludes our testimony.
MR, GHEMILLION: Dean.
VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Yes, sir.
MR, GREMILLION: This 1s my last time.
Are you going to let me read this statement, please?
. VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: No, sir; no, slr; because
it does not comply with the rules, Mr. Gremillion, with which
you are thoroughly familiar. You are an Attorney CGeneral,
you are an abtbtorney of distinetion, you are thoroughly cognizant
of it, and if you wanted to submlt a statement, you did not
comply with the rules of which you have knowledge,
Now, finally, let me say this, we are going to
recess this hearing subject to further call of the Commission.
We are also saying to you witnesses who are under subpena
that you remain under subpena, the same subpena that has been
servved, and be subject to call for a further hearing, and
. finally, i1t having been noted that no registrars will appear

this afternoon, we are not going to adjourn the meeting, bub
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it will be recessed subject to further call by the Commission,
and we stand in recess.

{(Whereupon, at 11235 ofclock a.m., the hearing

was recessed, subject to further call of the Commission.)



